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The assignment

Florent Renaud (FR), a researcher at the Department of Astronomy and Theoretical Physics, Lund
University, placed a formal complaint September 7th, 2020 that he had been subject to harassment,
bullying and victimisation. This was reported to Human Resources at the Department of Astronomy
and Theoretical Physics, Lund University. LifeWise AB has been requested to conduct an investigation
to assess whether the situations described in the report can be defined as harassment and/or
victimisation, according to Swedish legislation concerning the work environment.

LifeWise conducted thirteen interviews, the first one with the claimant September 18th, 2020, the
second interview with the accused September 21th, 2020 and further interviews with the witnesses
September 28th and 29th and October 1st, 9th, 15th, 28th and 29th, 2020. E-mail conversations and
phone calls were conducted with two witnesses. LifeWise has also had access to previous reports of
victimisation dated May 23rd and June 5th 2018, an an annual staff review talk December 11th,
2019, as well as a OSA work environment survey that was conducted at the department during the
spring of 2020. Also an e-mail sent to Human Resources july 2nd, 2020.

The claim

In his claim FR addresses his experiences of harassment, victimisation and bullying. The formal
complaint states that in several situations and over time FR has been subjected to different types of
harassment. Professor Sofia Feltzing (SF), working at the faculty, is the accused party concerning
these violations.

The purpose of this investigation is to investigate and determine whether the allegations in this
report, of victimisation and harassment, can be defined as such according to Swedish legislation
concerning victimisation and harassment and according to policies regarding the psychosocial
working environment as well as Lunds University’s internal policies.

The focus of the investigation

The focus of the factual investigation is to evaluate the complaints made by the claimant, FR,
September 7th 2020 regarding the incidents that took place between the parties (the claimant and
the accused) during a period of several years. The investigation will also report any type of risk
factors that may have contributed to the occurrence of harassment or victimisation in the
organisational och social work environment. The investigation does not take into account any other
situations, nor does the investigation make any decisions or suggest any measures or legal action to
be taken.

Method and theory

Factual investigation is a method that provides employers with an objective and reliable written
evaluation concerning a claim of victimisation, harassment and discrimination in the workplace. The
method has been developed by researchers, in collaboration with lawyers working within
environmental law. The method factual investigation provides the employer with an objective
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evaluation of the situations specified in the claim, in compliance with legislation as well as taking into
account the organisation’s internal policies.

The factual investigation is based upon the principle of defence: each party has the right to submit
their version of the events and to respond to what the counter party or others express in defence of
their case.

Factual investigation involves documenting the facts, by gathering and evaluating material collected
through interviews with the involved parties, as well as witnesses, and also statements from
interviews, e-mails, social media texts and other evidence. The principle purpose is to collect and
report the facts only. These are documented in a report which specifies whether or not the situation
can be regarded as a violation of the Swedish Work Environment Act (AML} and/or the
Discrimination Act (DL (2008:567)).

The information gathered is evaluated according to the context in which the situations have
occurred. The factual investigation is documented in a written report which provides a reliable
evaluation of the facts and a conclusion upon which the organisation can make a decision about
possible measures to be taken. The report also includes issues in the psychosocial work environment
which may have increased the risk of victimisation, harassment, discrimination, such as leadership
roles, organisational change processes, stress, unresolved conflict and/or unclear roles ar tasks.

When the report is completed and handed over to the client it becomes the property of the client
organisation.

There are always two investigators; experienced organisational consultants who collaborate
throughout the investigation in order to ensure objectivity and reliability.

Contract of mandate

Prior to the factual investigation, a contract of mandate is signed by the client organisation, giving
LifeWise AB the mandate to carry out the investigation according to the method
“Faktaundersékning”. The mandate defines the employer and employee's obligations when
participating in the investigation, making sure that these are understood, accepted and agreed upon.

Disclaimer

LifeWise has a neutral position and does not represent the interests of any one party. LifeWise
reserves the right to not be held accountable for any possible misunderstandings that may have
occurred during the interviews. This report has been requested in English, therefore the legislation
and quotes from Swedish are translated into English. LifeWise cannot be held accountable for any
possible incorrect translation.
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Legal and organisational policies
Below we define the laws, policies and legal definitions relevant to the investigation and referred to
in this report.

The employers obligations

Work Environment Act (Arbetsmiljélagen AML)

The Swedish Work Environment Act aims to ensure that the individual employee has a work
environment free of health risks and that they are protected against bullying and victimisation.
Furthermore, it is an important principle that the employer should investigate whether conditions in
the work environment can be a health risk to those involved or if they are more directly exposed to
bullying and victimisation.

Chapter 3 further states:

1a§: "Employers and employees must work together to create a healthy working environment."
{Paragraph amended by 1994: 579)

2§: “The employer shall take all measures necessary to prevent the employee from being exposed to
ill-health or accidents. A starting point should then be that all factors that can lead to ill-health or
accidents should be changed or replaced so that the risk of ill-health or accidents is eliminated. "

§ 2a: “The employer shall systematically plan, manage and control the business in a way that leads to
the working environment fulfilling the prescribed requirements for a good working environment. He
shall investigate work injuries, continuously investigate any risks at work and take measures to
prevent and alleviate them. Measures that cannot be taken immediately should be scheduled. "

The employees obligations

4§: "The employee shall participate in the work environment work and participate in the
implementation of the measures needed to achieve a good work environment.”
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AFS

The Swedish Work Environment Authority's regulations (AFS 2015:4) provide the following guidelines
regarding situations where employees have reported a serious incident:

"The employer is always obliged to ensure that the work can be performed without risk of ill health
or accident"”.

“The employer is always have responsible for investigating incidents”

"Regardless of whether the reported incident leads to us taking action or not, the employer is always
obliged to investigate what happened and then take the necessary measures to prevent what
happened from happening again.”

14§ “The employer must ensure that there are routines for how victimisation should be dealt with.
The procedures must state

1. who should receive information that victimisation is occurring,

2. what happens to the information, what the recipient should do, and

3. how and where those who are exposed can quickly get help. "

The employer must make the procedures known to all employees.

Lunds University's internal policies

According to Lund University's internal policy on equality, equal treatment and diversity, there is zero
tolerance for abusive discrimination. Furthermore, it is clear in these internal policies regarding
abusive discrimination and discrimination that the employer is obliged to initiate an investigation if
one of the employees feels exposed. If abusive discrimination can be found, measures to stop and
prevent repetition should be implemented as soon as possible. The study is done on the basis of the
systematic work environment work and the regulation Organisational and social work environment,
AFS 2015: 14.

All managers at Lund University must work preventively against victimisation. In order to be able to
prevent victimisation, knowledge of the specific social work environment in the workplace is
required. This means that you as a manager must have the knowledge to be able to detect and deal
with collaboration problems and other sources of victimisation at an early stage. You must be able to
identify signs that indicate that victimisation is occurring, and you need competence to assess which
measures are appropriate to take.
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Managers are responsible for ensuring that ongoing reviews and interventions concerning the
working environment comply with the legislation and the division of tasks within the work
environment area. Employees and students participate in these tasks by taking responsibility for their
own behaviour, following instructions and pointing out risks.

Legal definitions

Victimisation

Victimisation is defined in accordance with the Work Environment Act as "acts that are directed
against one or more workers in an abusive manner and which may lead to ill health or to be placed
outside the community of the workplace". Note that according to the current definition, it does not
have to be about repetitive behaviours.

Victimisation is a broader concept than discrimination and can, for example, be a rude response from
one colleague to another. Examples of victimisation are: sexual harassment, derogatory or ridiculous
comments about work, abusive comments on persons, opinions, appearance or privacy, aggressive
outcomes, threats of violence or other violations, spread of rumours that undermine a person's
dignity.

Bullying
According to the Swedish Work Environment Authority, bullying is defined as recurring negative
actions over a period of time {usually at least six months) directed at individuals or a group. The
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definition also includes that there is an imbalance in power between perpetrator and victim and that
the actions lead to the victim being excluded from the social community.

Discrimination

Discrimination is defined according to the Discrimination Act as anyone being disadvantaged or
offended in connection with one of the seven grounds of discrimination, gender, gender identity or
expression, ethnic affiliation, religion or other beliefs, disability, sexual orientation and age.
Discrimination can be direct or indirect. Lack of access, harassment, sexual harassment and
instructions to discriminate are also forms of discrimination.

Harassment

Harassment is a concept that occurs in the Discrimination Act and is defined there as an undesirable

behaviour that violates someone's dignity with connection to the seven grounds of discrimination. It
is the exposed person who decides what is undesirable and abusive. If an abusive behaviour contains
any of the seven grounds for discrimination, it can be considered as harassment.

Poradact % issoksand 3 Aontaki
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The factual investigation of this report

The content of the formal claim and the interviews

We investigate the formal claim and evaluate the complaints made in the following interview
statements, We also evaluate the responses of the accused and witnesses to these complaints in the
interviews specified below. The report is structured according to themes of the claims, as following:

Victimisation
Exclusion
Persecution
Control
Minimization

ST LSS [C) 1IN 6

Personal attacks

Allegations of victimisation stated by FR concerning SF

1. FR says that he is exposed to victimisation by SF at The GalForm-meeting October 15th, 10.30,
2019.

FR: "We organised the meeting, and | volunteered to show my work. Prepared a presentation on a
screen. Both of them (Sofia and Melvyn) don't like that, they want it on the whiteboard. | wanted to
show a movie and pictures. | decided how to do it. She arrives and sees the projector, and complains
about the projector. She says do it on the white board. She's not my boss, it's my presentation and
she can leave if she doesn't want to listen to it. So this put me in a poor state of mind. | showed my
work. She interrupted the whole time. She talked more than | did. | teach for 3 year students and even
the students know the answer to this. She wants to minimize the importance of my work. She's
yelling, she doesn't want me to get to the end of the thing. Other people in the room are afraid to ask
questions because if they do they are afraid that she will yell at them. | also had a guest from the UK.
She knew | had a guest. She wanted to show that was am doing is minimize my work in front of my
guest. Some of the students come to me and ask me questions after and tell me that they were afraid
to ask questions...After that Anders Johansen asked me to come to his office, almost in tears. He
asked me how the meeting went. | was scared of being called to the principal's office. | told him how
she harassed me. He said “what am | supposed to do with them?”. That's not my job. You have to do
something. We didn't come to a conclusion.”

SF: "The atmosphere was bad. | did not behave appropriately. | became even more angry because
they wanted to have a presentation and not a discussion. ! should have backed down. | was in a
certain mood, completely unnecessary, completely unprovoked, this set a bad atmosphere from the
beginning. | asked a couple of questions about the presentation. The idea is to be able to ask
questions all the time. A lot of people think this is an exciting and fun format. It does not suit
everyone and | don’t think it suited Florent. It was wrong of me to go about it that way, it created a
bad atmosphere. | asked o question about the colours, | did. Then | asked a technical question that he
couldn't answer so | asked it twice. Yes, that was bad. He probably felt attacked. We have not talked
about this afterwards, he has talked to the others afterwards. The prefect never brought it up with
me. | had private problems. | worked a lot, | sit on some committees but not exceptionally many, as it




says here somewhere in the report. We deal with many matters and we have 5-6 meetings per term. |
did not want to do that (it's 10% of my working hours). | simply think | was too busy. | was probably
overworked and had a short fuse... No, | wanted to know what he showed. | wanted to understand
what he was talking about. Florent wanted to present his results, but the purpose of the meeting is to
understand how they get to the results. So no, | never intended to diminish or minimize his
performance. Just to understand.”

EA: “She had an aggressive way of questioning things that are not reasonable to question. To
question and not to be constructive. Questions that interfere with the presentation, "I don’t think
you should use the projector because it is not educational”, Florent has prepared something and she
immediately sets rules to interfere with that, she controls the conversation and the presentation so
you get confused. When you get confused, she pushes questions at you so hard that you don’t get

" anywhere. You feel exposed and nervous. This happened at this meeting and at most of the meetings
where she is present. | do not know exactly why Florent. She chooses people to have a go at, some
more obviously than others.”

RF: ”I was at this meeting. Normally at meetings we present on a white board. Florent wanted to
have a power-point presentation. Sofia was clear that she did not want it that way. ... .. | felt sorry for
Florent, | remember it was a difficult meeting. | also thought the questions were trivial and
unscientific . No one else was allowed to speak, Sofia asked a lot of questions, we did not discuss the
science. It didn't feel like she thought it was good. That was weird.”
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OA: “I was not at GalForm because | was on parental leave. | heard from others how much he was he
put under pressure. From both messenger and email. It was not just him who said that. Erik
Andersson told me, he was there. Rebecka Forsberg was probably there. | know from the prefect that
someone reported this, it was so bad that they told the prefect. Some student researcher went to the
prefect independently and said that it was completely unacceptable.”

AJ: ”In an annual development interview with Paul McMillan on October 15, he said that he
personally was exposed to aggressive behavior from Sofia a few times a year. He also said something
about what had happened at the GalForm meeting, that Sofia behaved badly towards Florent. | called
Florent into my office and asked him what had happened. | told Florent that no employee should be
treated like that. He seemed grateful for this. | contacted Sofia and talked to her about Paul and
Florent's reporting her behavior. She became upset and sad and we talked about being more careful
with her tone of voice in the future”

Evaluation of the facts

The accused confirms this statement made by the claimant. The witnesses confirm that the situations
implying victimisation have occurred.

The alleged claim of victimisation can be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.

2. FR describes feeling excluded in four different situations.

Excluded by SF from a project with OA and EA

FR: “Yes, after this presentation at GalForm | showed her what | was working on. We had an idea for
a project together with Oscar, a phd student and the technical. After Anders or HR told her about this,
I was not part of these discussions any more. | was surprised but i have pride and don't want to say
anything. They said that “Florent should be here”. | felt excluded, it was exactly what | was working
on. At some point i said to my boss that i felt excluded, he said “yes i know but i don't know what to
do about it”. September this year he said that he is not being a part of these meetings any more
because it's toxic. The phd student also left the collaboration.”

SF: “After a while we included my new postdoc Diane but we didn't include Florent. We were still
working on the observations and had not started with the simulations. Then Oscar and | wrote one
application in the fall and one in the spring. We discussed many times who we would involve. | did not
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want too many co-applicants, but based on how the application was to be formulated, it would have
been strategically stupid to include too many.”

OA: ”Yes, me and my student Erik went with Sofia, her student and other researchers. Those meetings
are called by Sofia. They were very relevant for Florent. He has not been included by Sofia. I think it
would be obvious for him to be at those meetings... ..l have said "shall we include Florent". Then she
said "let’s wait a while, not at the moment"..It’s strange that he is not included considering that so
much of his work is in this field. It was clear that he was working on results that were relevant for
these meetings.

Florent just seemed to accept the situation as it was. | think that he should have been included.
Especially now in retrospect when you understand it all more clearly. Sofia invited her researchers,
Diane and Thomas Bensby, so it appeared as if only one person was missing. A forum where he
wasn't included ...l remember pointing it out to Sofia. She is the one who calls these meetings. She
said no. 1 did not know how to address it other than to bring it up with her. Many outside of the group
also wonder why he is not included.”

EA: "Over time, more people became involved from Sofia's side. Oscar was on parental leave. She
brought in Thomas and Diane and also involved other people from outside. Florent should have been
invited because that's exactly what he does. Suddenly, the project changed course over to Sofia's area
of research.”

Evaluation of the facts

The accused confirms this situation but not the statement made by the claimant about exclusion.
Witnesses confirm that the situations implying victimisation have occurred.

The alleged claim of victimisation can be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.
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FR claims to be excluded from evaluation committees

FR: “The first time was in moy 2018 it was Maria Lomaeva. She was the master coordinator, making
sure everything is working corfectly. | said it was a VG, he said it was a G. It was not aggressive. It
was my first experience. | wasn't pushing, | just asked why not a VG. We discussed it for a while. Sofia
was smiling and said to Tomas maybe you can consider a VG. And then it was a VG. | went back to my
office. Nils, the student supervisor, came in and said to me “thank you for doing that”. Since then |
haven't been asked to be in the committee again. You have to be fair. That was my fault. Again
excluding me, and stopping me from getting a job...maybe. That's how I perceive it.”

SF: ”As a master coordinator, | have aimed for the examiner to be a professor or docent. Florent is
neither of these. Then there is a committee member too for each student as well. In the specific case
in 2018, Thomas Bensby was the examiner. | was present as chairman. The aim is a grading. Everyone
can get a VG but it is grading. | was on sick leave the next day so | don't remember anything about
that meeting. When you are a postdoc like Florent, you don't want to burden them with too much, he
should focus on his own research...He was not included last year nor this year either. We had an
unusual number of postdocs last year and there were many to choose from. He has not been involved
but he has not been excluded either.”

SF: "Jag har som koordinator efterstravat att exarninatorn ska vara ldrare eller docent. Florent dr
varken eller. Sen finns det en kommittéledamot ocksd for varje student. | det specifika fallet 2018
var Thomas Bensby examinator. Jag var med som ordférande. Tanken dr att det ska graderas. Alla
kan fé VG men det dr betygsdttning. Jag sjukskrev mig dagen efter sd jag minns inget av det motet.
Ndar man sjdlv dr postdocs som Florent ar vill man inte belasta dem for mycket, han ska tdnka pa sin
egen forskning...Han var inte med forra dret och inte detta heller. Vi hade ovanligt mycket postdocs
fdrra dret och det fanns mdnga att véilja mellan. Han har inte varit med men han har heller inte
exkluderas.”

BT: “Finally Sofia said "Thomas, are you ok with her getting o VG?" Then he turned abruptly and said
yes of course and then she got a VG. Since then, Florent has been excluded from working on his
masters with Sofia. Florent was in and helped Nils’s student, again a trigger, he then ended up on her
blacklist.”

BT: "Till sist sa Sofia “Thomas dr du ok med att hon far VG?" Da véinde han tvdrt och sa javisst och sd
fick hon VG. Sedan dess har Florent blivit utfryst frdn master-arbete med Sofia. Florent var inne och
hjdlpte Nils student och igen dr det en trigger, sen blev han pd black-listen.”

NR: “Florent said only “I can’t agree with this, it's not correct’. He didn't listen to Sofia. | went to him
afterwards and said “thank you for speaking your mind.”

NR: "Florent sa bara "jag gdr inte med pd det hdr, det stdmmer ju inte”. Han lyssnade inte pd Sofia.
Jag gick till honom efterdt och sa "tack for att du sa ifran.”

Evaluation of the facts

The accused denies the statement made by the claimant. The witnesses confirm the subjective
feeling of victimisation but cannot confirm the exclusion of the claimant.

The alleged claim of victimisation cannot be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.




Wise

COACHING & CONSULTING

FR claims he is being excluded by not being introduced to important visitors

FR: “It's subtle. When we have visitors they (Sofia and Melvyn) will not introduce me to the guests.
Several times.”

SF: ”I do not know what he means. | do not have many visitors. When someone visits | try to introduce
them to the other employees but it probably will not be to everyone. It is hard to present everyone
when we are 40 people”

SF: “Jag vet inte vad han syftar pd. Jag har inte sd manga som beséker mig. Jag forséker ndr jag har
ndgon pd besdk att presentera dem for de andra anstdllda men det blir sdkert inte komplett. Det dr
svart ndr vi dr 40 st att introducera alla.”

Evaluation of the facts
The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. There are no witnesses.
The alleged claim of victimisation cannot be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.

FR claims he is being excluded from a conversation with EA

FR: "We were talking by the lunch table. Me and Eric. She sits in between us in the middle of the
discussion and talks Swedish with him...She showed me her back and ignored me.”

SF: ”l don’t know what situations he is relating to. It can happen that | speak Swedish with other
Swedish speakers because there may be a question with a solution that is best solved in Swedish
where the English is good but not as good. That | would sit down between them and turn my back on
them would be totally out of the question. | usually apologize and say "I'm sorry it's better to do this
in Swedish". Anyway, Florent likes to speak French with other French speakers.”

Tt O i ¢,

EA: ”I can't say that | remember this. But | wouldn't be surprised if this has happened.”

Evaluation of the facfs

The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. The witness cannot confirm that the
situations implying victimisation have occurred.

The alleged claim of victimisation cannot be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.

3. FR feels persecuted by SF.
2nd of July 2020

GE: “I was trying to avoid her. | am afraid that i will make a mistake. | was in the break room, she was
waiting for me in the corridor. She was holding the door handle. Then | went to the break room and
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she followed me. | know she did that on purpose. | know she was following me. | think it was to
intimidate me. She has seen the report. | am not talking to her anymore. | go around the building, |
am scared and it's probably emotional. It's not a rational reaction. | passed by some colleagues. The
only place | can think of is the toilet. | am terrified. It's irrational. | am stronger than her but i can not
control it. | can hear that she is outside. | calm myself down. This was in July, the department was
empty. | am really scared, and i think that if i open the door she will yell at me, punch me in the face
or something. | was so terrified, | was shaking and crying. | could not do anything. After 10 minutes |
splashed fresh water on my face. | went back, and passed Brian and Eric, closed the door behind me.
Told them, | was crying. Brian reported that but it has been ignored by the HR. Other people have
seen this. Brian and Eric, David Hobbs have been spied on. In 10 minutes she passed by 6 times. Some
people said that if you need a witness they will help me.”

SF: “I might have walked behind him, but not in order to follow him. No, | did not do that.... That
would be awful. In his text, he describes that he is afraid of me and that | would scare and persecute
him. | do not know where he got that idea from. | do not understand it.”

BT: “We were in the yard drinking coffee in the afternoon. There was a bad atmosphere. F tries to
avoid S. When she arrives, he leaves. Sofia asks about Florent and | do not dare answer. We talk
about something else, small talk. Then we go to our offices. Then | see Florent coming in and then
Sofia. Then Sofia walks past at a fast pace. Then F comes into my office and tells me that he was
scared and that he locked himself in the bathroom. He was not feeling well, we told him he shouldn't
come to work the next day. He tock that as a huge defeat, then he broke down, which he of course
did not want to do in front of students. When | got home in the evening, | sent that e-mail. Maybe she
went after him to start a conversation, | do not know. He has a problem with her, so when she goes
after him, he gets anxious. She keeps track of who attends meetings, maybe she wants to keep a
check on what he is doing.”

EA: “It was traumatic. It was after the work environment report had been presented to us. Florent
was worried but did not want to stay at home. We had lunch out in the courtyard. It was me, Florent
and Brian. Sofia came out and sat down with us. Florent became uncomfortable and went inside.
Sofia asked me how Florent was, she thought he was behaving strangely. | didn't really want to
answer that. A moment later Brian and | were sitting in the office working and Florent came in to us,
broke down and felt terrible.

Out in the yard there was a strange atmasphere. When Florent came into our office, there was no
doubt that he was scared. He was afraid of Sofia. ... He felt monitored. He said he was afraid of her
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although there was no direct reason to be afraid, as he is physically bigger, but that he was afraid she
would harm him. The fear was not rational, he said. ... Sofia is extremely good at using master
suppression techniques as a way of making others feel inferior. She's done that to me as well. If you
look at what has happened previously, people have left the department but several months later they
are still afraid of Sofia and keep looking over their shoulder making sure that she is not there. She is
very calculating in her use of master suppression techniques.”

OA: “Yes, | know that Florent contacted me when he had locked himself in the bathroom. Brian and
Erik said that they reported it to HR. They all reported the situation identically. | was at home but was
told about it. “l am in the bathroom and | am terrified”. | didn’t witness this incident myself.”

Ga: “Ja jag vet att NMorent harde av siy nde han (dste in siy pa tealetien. Brimy ochy Erik sa dven ait e
JUs g L1

anndli det Ll HR. Alig tre heskrev det identiskt. Ddvar jay hemma men fick ded rapporterat. “Jag

sitter nd toaletren cch jag ar liviadd”. Jag har inte taxttazit det sjaiv "

Evaluation of the facts

The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. The witnesses confirm the subjective
experience of victimisation but cannot confirm the persecution of the claimant.

The alleged claim of victimisation cannot be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.

August 27th, 2020

FR: "We have glass doors and glass walls which is nice. Every time they pass they will look at your
screen. Sometimes she will open the door and comment on what | am doing. She will invite
herself....Sofia is less intrusive, she doesn't interrupt the tele-con. She will look and she will say this is
not the right paper you should read, this is ugly. Maybe she is paranoid or | don't know but when |
was talking to Leif, she passed by 6 times. When | was talking to Nils, minutes after she talked to the
dean about not coming back to the department. When they come to the office we don’t. She passed
by at least 5 times and Nils said, "oh she's here again”. She sometimes stood with a piece of paper by
the printer for 10 minutes. Nobody else does that frequently. You can go get a coffee but not 6 or 20
times. Keep looking in and it's obvious. There are people thinking of recording this by video and also
on the phone if she calls”

GE: "I had a meeting with HR, the prefect, etc. that day. 5 pm is about when | go home, Nils Ryde's
office is right by the toilet. It is impossible to walk past without seeing a human being sitting there. |
know I passed by to go to the toilet and it's quite unusual for Florent to sit in Nils Ryd's office, |
noticed that. When | went home | pushed open the door to the stairwell with my back then you look
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straight into Nils' office. Florent and Nils were standing and Nils looked at me and then | waved
goodbye before | left. | was just being polite.”

NR: “This is something she does very often. I've been subject to it too. It is demonstrative. She shows
that "l see you both". We looked at each other, she waved and | saw it as "l see you both". She never
waves. Florent is an enemy and this was a day she would come by. Florent was terrified.”

Evaluation of the facts

The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. The witnesses confirm the subjective
experience of victimisation but cannot confirm the persecution of the claimant.

The alleged claim of victimisation cannot be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.

4. FR experiences that SF tries to control, monitor and influence him through various statements
and behaviors

Comment, spring of 2018

FR:“I had a guest when we had a department meeting. She (Sofia) passed by, we were discussing in
the kitchen. She says, “you should be at the department meeting. How do you think you can be o
professar if you don't go to meetings”. In front of my guest. This was spring 2018. She makes “jokes”
about things all the time, she knows where it hurts. | didn't go to the meeting.”

SF:“I have no memory of this but it is totally possible that | knocked on his open door and said
“Florent, there is a meeting now. it's probably good if you attend.”

LL:"I can't say outright that | experienced such a situation. | recognise the situation. The four of us
were in the kitchen, in the spring of 2018, sounds reasonable time-wise. What Sofia said I cannot
remember.”

MD:“I can tell you about this since | was present at the time. | was at the time working for University
of Surrey in the UK. Florent invited me over to work on a scientific project we have been developing
for a few years. There was a department meeting that Florent did not attend considering | was there
and we had a lot of work to do. | think it was a little while after the meeting that we were having a
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coffee/tea in the break room...Sofia started talking to Florent and asked him why he was not at the
department meeting. She indeed added that he would never get a professorship with "such an
attitude”. | remember clearly the scene because the tone of Sofia clearly implied some kind of
threat..”

Evaluation of the facts

The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. The witness confirms that the situations
implying victimisation have occurred.

The alleged claim of victimisation can be proven according to an evaiuation of the facts.

Time planning 11th of October 201

FR: “It was to prepare for October 14th... | received an email from her. One hour later | got an email
from Davies about times when | should meet the students. Not if i had time or anything, just telling
me. | have 11 of them to talk to and Sofia said you should talk to them in groups. No, you should
respect the schedule from Davies. | tell them “you can't decide my schedule”. | wanted to organize it
myself. She said no, please don't talk to the students before. | agreed to meet the students in groups.
They took the decision on my schedule, that is what upset me. They want to control everything, no
they want you to know that they are in charge although they are not.”

SF: “I perceived that he organized it in an inappropriate way. We had 11 new students, they were
supposed to choose 8. All 11 wanted to talk to Florent. We had sent out an e-mail with plenty of
notice. In the past, some have chosen to have them in groups and some have talked to them one by
one. That was all we asked Florent to do. | said we need to sit down and talk about this, we can't e-
mail any more. We had a 1.5 hour discussion about this, we understood each other's points of view,
how he thought, that he understood what | meant and in the end he said "{ understand what you
mean and we can do it that way".

I do not understand why this is brought up again.”

OA: “It was when the.students doing a masters were to discuss their projects... Sofia is the
coordinator, Melvyn was going to coordinate those concerning theory. They gave us the optimal
solution, I was on parental leave so | just said "l don't have time to get involved with this, it will be
fine". Florent said he did not want to, he wanted to meet them individually. There was then an
exchange of words that became heated. It was very strange that they didn't agree for him to do so. |
don’t think it really matters. Why can't we be flexible about certain things? | know that it then led to
him having a marathon-long meeting with Sofia where he was told that it was inappropriate. How
can such small matters turn into such a heated discussion so quickly?”
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Evaluation of the facts

The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. The witness confirm the subjective
experience of victimisation but cannot confirm the victimisation of the claimant. The alleged claim of
victimisation cannot be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.

Comment on not being able to get a permanent position, autumn of 2019.

FR: “Last autumn in the coffee room, 4-6 times she told me, “the department will never give you a
permanent job and that you wouldn't get one elsewhere either”. Sometimes it's in general that the
department is too big and we shouldn't hire. She said it to me directly in a group making sure | would
understand. Some people witnessed.”

SF: “I have no idea where he got this from. | know last year we discussed, once or twice with
colleagues, how we wanted things to be in academics. There are very few positions and it is difficult
to get a job. It is completely out of the question that | would have said that. No never. Why would |
say that in public? | can't predict that with our system of fundings. He might be lucky/unlucky. It is
completely unlikely that | would have said that in a closed room and even less unlikely in the break
room...We have talked about how difficult in general it is to get a job.”

Evaluation of the facts
The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. There are no witnesses.
The alleged claim of victimisation cannot be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.

Control concerning who and who not attends meetings and reprimands if non-attendance

GE: “Sofia and Melvyn keep track of who enters meetings and who doesn't. And not being present
makes it ok to give reprimands. They always sit at the same seats furthest from the door. They sit
with nobody behind them and they will see if someone arrives late. | would not be surprised if they
take notes.”

SF: “As a masters student, you are supposed to attend seminars and certain research meetings. In my
role as coordinator, | wanted to make sure that these students came to the meetings. Yes, | often sit
up front on one of the sides so that | can see who attends. | check that the examination students are
present. There have been periods when attendance has dropped, when they did not attend at all.
When that happens, | send an e-mail to all the masters students that this is part of their education.
My intent has to check the students, not whether Florent, Thomas or any of the others are present or
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not. | can understand that and maybe it was a stupid way to do it and that it may have been
misinterpreted.”

Regarding the questions of getting reprimanded if not going to meetings Sofia says:

SF: “I don't understand. Who would be reprimanded by whom? Yes, | send out e-mails to my masters
students or my doctoral student maybe. | have never discussed with him, | know he does not attend
all meetings but | have never said anything to him. “

Evaluation of the facts
The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. There are no witnesses.
The alleged claim of victimisation cannot be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.

Control of FRs interactions with his students

FR: “Yes, if they are talking about research English should be the working language...it's pretty
obvious. She came here 2 years ago and she spoke English but wasn't fluent...I am beginning to think
that if you have 18 months left and not being able to handle the language must be very disabling”

SF: “Why would | tell him not to eat or have coffee with the students. | would never say that. | eat
lunch with my students. Of course there is a teacher-student role. Some do not understand that they
have a role. They think you are friends, that you are students together. It can get bad. We may have
had such a discussion, | know | have told this to others.”

SF: “Varfor skulle jag sdya det il honom att inte ata eller fike med studenterna. Det skulle jay
aldrig saga. Jag dter ju sjdlv lunch med ming studenter, De klart att finns en ldrar-student-roll
Vissa farstar inte att de befinner sig i en roll. Att man dr kompis, ate man dr studenter ihop. Det
kan bii ganska daligt. Vi kan mojligtvis haft en san diskussion, fay vet att jog sagt det till andra.”
Evaluation of the facts

The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. There are no witnesses.

The alleged claim of victimisation cannot be proven according to the evaluation of the facts.




HoWise

COACHING & CONSULTING

5. FR feels in different ways minimized by SF.
Use of water kettle in the break room

FR: “More than once. Water kettle. | drink a lot of tea. It's not big so we need to refill it several times.
Without planning | happened to want tea at the same time as she. | took the kettle, she said “no no,
this is for the professor. You are not busy, you can wait”. One time when | confronted her she was
upset and after | confronted her she left.”

SF: “We have one single water kettle and many want to use it. What | may have said is that
sometimes you put on some water and then someone else takes it. "Can | have water before you,
because I'm in a hurry,” | may have said. | did not say that | would say that | am more busy than him.
Maybe he didn't understand what I said. | can imagine that there might be a linguistic
misunderstanding.”

OA: “There are times when | have been with Sofia when she has been angry about the tea water with
we have stood there. She is “stressed”, unpleasant. Like "I'm the one putting on the water", very
strange. "l should be first" and Florent has said “I'm sorry”. At first we thought she was joking or
playing a game. But she exploded, | stood next to him.”

Evaluation of the facts

The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. The witness confirms that the situations
implying victimisation have occurred.

The alleged claim of victimisation can be proven according to the evaluation of the facts.

When FR asks SF to order a white board

FR: “Early in the morhing, she was preparing coffee for a meeting. | passed by and | knew she was in
the process of ordering new chairs and white boards. | wanted a bigger one. | asked her politely “are
you in charge of the white board, | heard you are ordering that. Can | get a big one”. She exploded
immediately. She said you have no right to demand that. | left the rocom. | came back and she was still
there. She was calmer but she said again “you should not demand things like that.”

SF: “I remember that he asked me. We had been working extra with that order, just getting it done
was difficult. We said that from the beginning, sent-out an email asking who wanted an office chair,
an elevating desk, etc ... It was for the teachers, it was not for anyone to come and ask for as many
white boards as they wanted. Florent already had a white board. | stood and made tea and then he
showed up and he didn't make a request instead he said "l should have a white board". My initial
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reaction was that | didn't want to have anything else to do with the order. "No, there is not going to
be any more", His experience can be confirmed. This led to him getting a white board and we
discussed communication. We talked about it and | understood that he did not mean what he said. |
thought he understood that | did not mean what | said. A miss in the communication. | was
annoyed..”

OA: “I have heard raised voices in the corridor. About a year ago he asked for a white baard. Many
people report that it often gets awkward when you ask for things. Then F was very upset, came in to
me with a red face and said that he had been scolded by Sofia.”

Fyp ert gr sedes bad hon e eg white board,
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Evaluation of the facts

The accused confirms the incident. The witness confirm that the situations implying victimisation
have occurred. The alleged experience of victimisation can be proven according to the evaluation of
the facts.

Scientific results posted on the glass door

FR: “You should not put things here, she said. | said, look around, everybody has that. Toys, souvenirs,
license plates. She said “they shouldn't do that and they don't know how to behave. | took it down
and didn't dare to put it back up.”

SF: “Again the same thing as the issue with the window. You shouldn't put things on the window
because it will get dirty and because we need light in the corridor. Some put things up, but very few. |
told him for sure, there's a bulletin board by his door. There is plenty of room to set up your result.”

S50 CArerigen sammea sk sora fonstrsl. Man ska inte s8tha saker pa ronsiret Ffor det blir smutsii
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Evaluation of the facts
The accused confirms this statement made by the claimant. There are no witnesses.
The alleged claim of victimisation cannot be proven according to the evaluation of the facts.

Comment from SF: “You are not busy”
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FR: “It's a part of minimizing my work. My work is not important. My time is not valuable. | feel like |
am not considered as a scientist or collaborator. Rebecca Forberg has been told the same. They could
say that during the coffee break.”

SF: “There are a lot of discussions at the coffee table among those sitting there that they have a lot to
do. | wouldn't say that they don’t know what it is to have a lot to do. | don't really understand. With a
student, one might say that there will be more and more things later in their career. You feel busy
with what you have. Many times as a student, | experience that they have a poor awareness of what
you do as a professor in academia. Research is just one of the tasks.”

RF: “Both (Sofia and Melvyn) have said "You are not busy, wait until you are at my level”. This is said
in the corridor, the lunch room when they ask how things are. | wouldn't be surprised if they said that
to Florent.”

Evaluation of the facts

The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. The witness confirms the subjective
experience of victimisation but cannot confirm the minimization of the claimant. The alleged claim of
victimisation cannot be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.

6. Personal attacks
Comment from SF that FR has an odour

FR: “One of the first days in my office. Nobody was there, | opened the window. She passed by and
said “you should close the window, we don't do that here”. And | said “why?” She didn't give me a
reason. She pointed at her nose and said “yes i understand that the smell could be a problem”

SF: “The ventilation system is very good, there is a good airflow. If you open a window, you destroy
the airflow. Someone told me this as well, more than once. | do not remember this specific occasion,
but | probably knocked on his door and told him not to open the windows. Me telling him that he had
a problem with his body odour is a truely insulting statement from him.”

Evaluation of the facts
The accused denies this statement made by the claimant. There are no witnesses.
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The alleged claim of victimisation cannot be proven according to an evaluation of the facts.
Comment from SF that FR has an heavy french accent

FR: “We have all these different backqrounds. We joke a lot about it. But with them (Sofia and
Melvyn) it's a hurting joke. If someone jokes about | like cheese it's fun. But she says | am lazy, mocks
my french, does an impression of the accent. It could be seen as a joke if it was about “oh, you love
food”. It upsets me but it doesn't hurt me. It's not funny. Three other people are french and | never
heard that she said anything to them.”

SF: “Yes, 1 did that.The second it left my mouth | thought "hell, what did | say now". I was incredibly
ashamed and immediately apologized. You just can't say that. | imitated a French accent in English.
We were in the coffee room, just a few of us. | have done that once as far as | know. How many
“dumstrutar” ("stupid me”) and “skdmskoftor”, ("shame on me”) should | say?”

RF: “I have noticed that Sofia in particular uses a harsh tone towards him. Sometimes tried to joke but
it is not funny. Sometimes commented that he has a heavy French accent.”

OA: “She has talked about his frenchness in the coffee room but it felt like we were joking with each
other. But in that environment you can't joke about that. Cultural differences”

Evaluation of the facts

The accused confirms the incident. The witnesses confirms that the situations implying victimisation
have occurred. The alleged experience of victimisation can be proven according to an evaluation of
the facts.
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Other relevant quotes

Below are relevant quotes from the interviews that confirm FR's vulnerability and that have
contributed to the report's conclusion. It appears that SF talks negatively about/spreads
unfavourable rumours about FR, that SF has urged a colleague to exclude FR from work and that FR
due to fear of SF, has avoided social situations. This confirms the vulnerable position of FR's in
relation to SF and her behaviour.

RC: “Sofia - she said recently. Look Ross, you need to forget about what has happened to you. That
was then and this is now. If we give teaching to someone like Florent... it sends a signal. She was
making sure that he couldn't get the opportunity to do what he needed for his career development. |
should push him out...I took it onboard. If you don't do what she says, it's very unpleasant. So |
started changing the course for him to be as little a part as possible.”

OA: “I am at these meetings. Florent stopped going eventually. | have heard from both Sofia and
Melvyn that he isn't present and that he “refuses to go to meetings”. The meetings, no one
appreciates them ... When | have seen presentations they are interrupted a lot by Melvyn and Sofia,
people are put in their place... When Florent said "I do not want to go to that meeting" then people
started telling me that Sofia and Melvyn stopped being friendly.”

OA: “Both Sofia and Melvyn aren't particularly friendly towards Florent, it was different from the
beginning but after that | have noticed that they don't appreciate him. Sofia thinks that Florent is very
determined, that he is stubborn in a bad way, a bit “difficult” (“b6kig”) she said. That he is hard to
deal with.”

RF: “I have noticed that Sofia uses a harsh language with him...Asked critical questions At GalForm,
and uses harsh jargon towards Florent that | haven't noticed she uses towards others..Sofia has
ignored him, if one of them has entered a room, the coffee room, the other one left, since the
autumn/end of the year. They have avoided each other. | think it's because Florent can't bear to hear
her harsh tone...It's like Sofia has something against Florent, don’t know why.”

GT: “Once me and Florent were going to the grocery store to buy things to a barbecue. Sofia told me
to maybe mention to him to come to one of the group meetings more often. Outside of Florents close
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group, he was not so present at these meetings. It was a good suggestion from Sofia to include him
more in the group.”

BT: “She cant talk to Florent normally, she doesn't have the social skills.”

LM: “I get affected by her once a year...It was difficult for me then, back when | was new. The head of
the department at the time and Eva heard this and came to talk to me right afterwards and said that
it is just the way she is. Then it was easier for me. | have had a ok relationship with her. The tone has
been that you deal with it...I have been told that Florent has been subject to her ways, intimidated by
Sofia.” ‘

Psychological stress

Below are extracts from the claim, from annual review talks December 11th, quotes from interviews
and quotes from e-mails concerning how the claimant has been affected by the reported events.
From the claim:

FR: “These events and others have caused the highest levels of stress and anxiety | have ever
experienced...

Below are from AJs notes from FRs annual review meeting december 11th 2019:

Al: “Then | had my review meeting with Florent and Oscar (his line manager) on December 11th,
2019. It turned out that Florent felt unwell and that there had been many more incidents of
aggressive behaviour from Sofia than he had previously reported.”

* Florent feels subjected to repeated (but unpredictable) aggressive behaviour by Sofia

* Florent feels afraid about whether Sofia will act psychologically aggressively towards him or shout
at him when he meets her

* Florent feels nervous when interacting with Sofia, he prefers to avoid her

* Conflicts can be about small things such as taking hot water from a kettle or large things such as
scientific disagreements in public at group meetings
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Quotes from the interviews:

OA: “ have seen the decline. | have not seen anyone feel so bad and be so affected. He is strong,
individual and stands for what he thinks. He has been extremely affected ||| fe¢/ing os
bad as he does is very unusual. "He has not been able to work for a long time, he is very inefficient at
the moment and he does not see how he can get help.”
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OA: “Yes, | know that Florent contacted me when he locked himself in the bathroom. Brian and Erik
said that they reported it to HR. They all reported the situation identically. | was at home but he
reported to me. “l am in the bathroom and | am terrified”. | did not witness this incident myself.”

O Vda Jay vet ali Florent hdrde av sig nar han {dste in sig pa oaletten Brian ool £rik sa dven
att de anmdli det till HR. Alla tre beskray det identiskt, D var jog hemma men fick det
capporterat, “Jay sitter pd toaletten och Jug dr liveddd”. Jag har inte jakitagit det sfilv,”

EA: “He was afraid of Sofia. ... He felt controlled/monitored by her. He said he was afraid of her but
there is no direct reason to be afraid, that he is physically bigger but he was afraid she would hurt
him. The fear was not rational, he said.”

BT: “He has a problem with her, so when she follows him, he feels anxiety.”

NR: “Florent is actually scared. He says at our meetings "I need to know when she is there.”

Quote from BT's e-mail to HR July 2nd 2020:

BT: “Itisa traiedy that somethini like this is ioini on. Can | report this to you as a witness?-

BT: “Eric and | asked Florent to take the Friday off, after which he breaks down in tears...Being bullied

out of the department means that he is unable to look after the students, _
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A summary of the evaluation of the facts in this investigation

The incident regarding the GalForm-meeting on October 15, 2019 is canfirmed by the accused and
witnesses and can be defined as victimisation according to the Swedish law (AML)

The situation regarding exclusion in the project is denied by the accused. Witnesses confirm the
claimant’s description and the situation can be defined as victimisation according to Swedish law
(AML).

The comment in the spring of 2018 is denied by the accused. A witness confirm the claimant’s
description and the situation can be defined as victimisation according to the law (AML).

The incident regarding the water kettle is denied by the accused. A witness confirm the claimants
description and the situation can be defined as victimisation according to the law (AML).

The incident regarding the whiteboard is confirmed by the accused and a witness and can be defined
as victimisation according to the law (AML).

The incident regarding the statement on his French accent is confirmed by the accused and witnesses
and can be defined as victimisation according to the law (AML).

The remaining twelve accusations cannot be substantiated as the accused denies the situations, the
accused has a different view of the situation, there are no witnesses, the witness cannot substantiate
the claimant’s description or an objective assessment can not be confirmed. The factual investigation
concludes that regarding these twelve charges no violations have occurred according to the Swedish
Discrimination Act or AML.

Conclusion

The factual investigation concludes that the accused has committed violations of the Work
Environment Act regarding six accusations.

The six accusations concerning victimisation have been individually assessed. They are each and
every one defined as victimisation according to an evaluation of the facts.

The six accusations concerning victimisation are also accumulatively assessed. As such they are thus
defined as workplace bullying. All the criteria for workplace bullying are met, with the possible
exception being the criteria of frequency, this is a matter of definition as it is not specified in Swedish
legislation.

There is an imbalance of power between the parties. The imbalance lies in the academic structure
but it has also been confirmed by the (OSA) work environmental survey conducted at the
department during the spring of 2020. In the {(OSA) work environment survey it is apparent that the
accused has a prelevant informal leadership role.

The victimisation has led to unreasonable psychological strain, stress and fear for the claimant,
generally in connection with the workplace, specifically in contact with the accused.
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For the claimant the repeated victimisation has partly meant exclusion from work and exclusion from
the social community within the workplace.

When a violation of the Work Environment Act has occurred, "employers must take the necessary
measures to ensure that what has happened does not happen again”. The employee also has a
responsibility to contribute to a good organisational and social work environment {(OSA).

It has for a long time been known to management that the claimant experienced intimidation in
contact with the accused.

In this case management has not prevented informal leadership roles and/or clarified the roles of
each employee which may have contributed to an escalation of the situation and increased the risk
of victimisation.

The employer has, according to The Swedish Work Environment Act (AML) and Lund University’s
policys regarding prevention of victimisation, neither been able to prevent or put a stop to the
alleged victimisation for the claimant, nor get the accused to change her behaviour. The situation
and the working relationship between the accused and the claimant worsened, and the claimant’s
experience of workplace bullying by the accused increased.

The factual investigation report

This report provides an independent, objective analysis of the specified situations that have occurred
and evaluates the facts in these situations according to legislation and policies.

The organisation is responsible for any subsequent decisions and/or interventions based upon this
report. This report becomes the property of the client organisation after completion.

Abbreviations and definitions

FR Florent Renaud

SF Sofia Feltzing

OA Oscar Agertz

EA Eric Andersson

BT Brian Thorsbro

NR Nils Ryde

GT Gregor Travis

LM Lena Magnusson

RF Rebecca Forsberg

LL Loke Lénnblad

RC Ross Church

™MD Maxime Delorme

Al Anders Johansen

AML Work Environment Act

AFS The Swedish Work Environment Authority's regulations
Ly Lunds University ‘

Lund 5" November 2020
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